
 

Please note: Electronic copies of this agenda and its related papers  
are available via the Council’s website www.maldon.gov.uk. 

APOLOGIES Committee Services  DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, 
PERFORMANCE AND 
GOVERNANCE 
Paul Dodson  

Email: Committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk  

    
   11 January 2023 

Dear Councillor 

 
You are summoned to attend the meeting of the; 

 

PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE  

 

on THURSDAY 19 JANUARY 2023 at 7.30 pm 

 

in the Council Chamber, Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon. 

 
Please Note: All meetings will continue to be live streamed on the Council’s YouTube channel for 
those wishing to observe remotely.  Public participants wishing to speak remotely at a meeting can 
continue to do so via Microsoft Teams. 
 
To register your request to speak please submit a Public Access form (to be submitted by 12noon 
on the working day before the Committee meeting).  All requests will be considered on a first-come, 
first-served basis. 
 
A copy of the agenda is attached. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP:  

CHAIRMAN Councillor W Stamp, CC 

VICE-CHAIRMAN Councillor Mrs J L Fleming, CC 

COUNCILLORS M R Edwards 
A S Fluker 
A L Hull 
J V Keyes 
N J Skeens 
E L Stephens 
Mrs J C Stilts 
Mrs M E Thompson 

Unrestricted Document Pack

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/watchlive
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=VH_RilQmuUumwvI0YlcqFJCd4KzoXBdDs1brNZU39TJUOVpCU0xQVlRWQlhHVU8wVThIMU03UjFLSC4u


 

Page 2 

For further information please see the Council's website. 

AGENDA 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY 19 JANUARY 2023 
 
1. Chairman's Notices   
 
2. Apologies for Absence   
 
3. Minutes of the last meeting  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
 To confirm the Minutes of the Performance, Governance and Audit Committee held on 

17 November 2022 (copy enclosed). 
 

4. Disclosure of Interest   
 
 To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Other 

Registrable interests and Non-Registrable Interests relating to items of business on 
the agenda having regard to paragraph 9 and Appendix B of the Code of Conduct for 
Members.  
 
(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting).  
 

5. Public Participation   
 
 To receive the views of members of the public, of which prior notification in writing has 

been received (no later than noon on the Tuesday prior to the day of the meeting). 
 
Should you wish to submit a question please complete the online form at: 
www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation. 
 

6. Audit Progress Update  (Pages 9 - 14) 
 
 To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed). 

 
7. Review of Corporate Performance - Quarter 2  (Pages 15 - 46) 
 
 To note the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy 

enclosed). 
 

8. Review of Corporate Risk - Quarter 2  (Pages 47 - 64) 
 
 To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy 

enclosed). 
 

9. Annual Governance Actions Update  (Pages 65 - 68) 
 
 To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy 

enclosed). 
 

10. Any other items of business that the Chairman of the Committee decides are 
urgent   

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation


Page 3 

For further information please see the Council's website. 

 
 

 
 

NOTICES 
 
Recording of Meeting 
Please note that the Council will be recording and publishing on the Council’s website any 
part of this meeting held in open session.   
 
Fire 
In the event of a fire, a siren will sound.  Please use the fire exits marked with the green 
running man.  The fire assembly point is outside the main entrance to the Council Offices.  
Please gather there and await further instruction. 
 
Health and Safety 
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.   
 
Closed-Circuit Televisions (CCTV) 
Meetings held in the Council Chamber are being monitored and recorded by CCTV. 

 
 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

MINUTES of 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
17 NOVEMBER 2022 

PRESENT 

Vice-Chairman 
(In the Chair) 

Councillor Mrs J L Fleming, CC 

Councillors M R Edwards, A S Fluker, A L Hull, J V Keyes, E L Stephens, 
Mrs J C Stilts and Mrs M E Thompson 

In attendance Councillor Mrs P A Channer 

407. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES 

The Chairman for the meeting, Councillor Mrs J L Fleming, welcomed all present and 
took the Committee through some housekeeping arrangements. 

408. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors N J Skeens and W Stamp, CC. 

409. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  

RESOLVED by assent that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 29 
September 2022, be approved and confirmed. 

410. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST  

There were none. 

411. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No requests had been received. 

412. INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources and associated 
Internal Audit reports from BDO LLP, attached on the agenda at 6a to 6d, Progress 
Report; Follow-up of Recommendations; Commercialisation and Flood Management 
Report. The Chairman introduced the reports and deferred to the Internal Audit Partner 
to present the detail.  

He advised the Committee that he would introduce the four reports  take questions 
after each one. It was noted that the Progress report at 6a covered the two reports on 
the agenda and that there were a further two in draft Safeguarding and Contract 
Management awaiting final management responses which will be considered at the 
next meeting. There was a slight change to the workplan in that Climate Change and 
Sustainability was deferred to next year’s plan to give time for the strategy to be 
embedded, with Cyber Security brought forward from next year, given the recent focus 

Unrestricted Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



on that area. He then took the Committee through the Follow-up of Recommendations 
report at 6b noting that seven recommendations were now complete, the overdue 
recommendations, relating to the management of property audit, were as a result of a 
delay in implementing the new property management system which will collate the data 
required.  

The Commercialisation Audit at 6c was positive attaining substantial on design and 
moderate on effectiveness of controls. The Council had good practice in place, a clear 
commercial strategy together with sound governance arrangements. There had been 
some inconsistencies in project processes, however these related to older projects and 
improvements had been introduced since to rectify the situation. 

There was a brief discussion on the importance of both scrutiny and a robust risk 
register in respect of commercialisation projects, together with a wider attendance or 
higher membership on the Corporate Projects Working Group. Both Councillor 
Channer and the Chairman advised that discussions were taking place around 
substitutions on working groups which would ensure appropriate levels of attendance 
and support for Officers in progressing key projects. 

The Head of Internal Audit then presented his final report Flood Management at 6d 
which had attained moderate on both design and effectiveness of controls. Two notable 
improvements were around governance arrangements and the development of a 
Strategic Flood Action Plan. There were still some issues to be addressed e.g. training; 
the lack of engagement with Anglian Water and a drainage system strategy. It was 
acknowledged that the key issue, that of engagement from Anglian Water, was difficult 
for Officers to resolve, however, there had been improvement all round. 

There being no further queries the Chairman moved the recommendations, they were 
duly seconded and the Committee agreed them by assent. 

RESOLVED that the Committee considered, commented and approved the 

(i) Internal Audit Progress Report – July 2022 at  6a; 

(ii) Follow-up of Recommendations Report – July 2022 - 6b; 

(iii) Commercialisation Report– May 2022 – 6c; 

(iv) Flood Management Report - 2021/2022 – 6d. 

413. ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 
DECIDES ARE URGENT  

In response to a query around the lack of External Audit reporting from Deloitte, LLP 
and issues related to the last external audit, the Director of Resources provided the 
following information:- 

 That an External Audit Update report was scheduled for the next meeting of the
Committee.

 That nationally Local Authorities had experienced significant delays with audits. The
situation was improving with auditors increasing resources and updating
timeframes resulting in better progress in recent months.

 That the pressures around the audit market nationally were due partly to resourcing
issues and partly to changes in audit regulations and requirements e.g. Value for
Money (VFM).

Page 6



 That the audit fee charges won’t be agreed until the audit is complete. Fees will
then be submitted to the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) the body that
determines and agrees fees independently between the auditors and the Council.
This body has ultimate sign-off. That a clearer picture will emerge in the next couple
of months as the auditors complete the accounts for the past two years.

 That the Council had met the timeline for publication of the accounts online.

 That additional work had already been reported on aspects of re-classification e.g.
Covid Grants which had to be removed from the Income and Expenditure Account
and reclassified within the Balance Sheet.

 That there was no impact on the bottom line, mainly a re-classification in the
accounts and all changes will be reported in the Audit Update report at the next
Committee.

The meeting closed at 7.52 pm. 

COUNCILLOR MRS J L FLEMING, CC 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

to 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
19 JANUARY 2023 
 
AUDIT PROGRESS UPDATE 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
 To update members on the progress of the external audit and the audit fees. 1.1

2. RECOMMENDATION 

 
That members consider the report. 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 

 
 Nationally there are challenges around the timeliness of local audit, one of the key 3.1

issues highlighted by Sir Tony Redmond in his independent review of local authority 
financial reporting and external audit. In 2017/18 the deadline for issuing audit 
opinions was brought forward from 30 September to 31 July. Since this point there 
has been a reduction in the number of local government audit opinions delivered on 
time, with significant reductions from 2018/19 onwards. This downward trend 
accelerated during the COVID-19 pandemic, with only 45% of 2019/20 audits 
completed by the extended deadline of 30 November 2020 and only 9% of 2020/21 
audits completed by the extended deadline of 30 September 2021. 
 

 As the National Audit Office (NAO) outlined in its 2020 report ‘Timeliness of local 3.2
auditor reporting on local government in England’, a variety of complex factors are 
contributing to audit delays. Audit firms are struggling with a net loss of qualified staff, 
with many qualified accountants choosing to leave the audit sector entirely. For 
auditors that are choosing to stay within the profession, alternative audit opportunities 
are often perceived as more attractive than local audit, which is contributing a high 
turnover of staff within firms. 
 

 In addition, increasing workload and regulatory pressure on auditors have contributed 3.3
to further delays. The NAO found that the additional requirements of new 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), along with increased 
expectations from the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) following high-profile 
corporate failures such as Carillion and Patisserie Valerie, had combined to produce 
a significant increase in audit work, particularly on asset and pensions valuations. 
 

 Due to these factors, Councils were advised to expect an increase in their audit fees 3.4
above those originally agreed (known as the scale fee) for the remainder of the audit 
appointment period.   
 

 The current audit appointment period expires after the 2022/23 audit year, and 3.5
following Council approval Maldon District Council (MDC) has opted into the national 
scheme again for the next five years with Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) 
Ltd. The procurement for the 2023/24 – 2027/28 period has now concluded with 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



PSAA advising that due to the current pressures in the market, fee increases of 
150% on the total fees for 2022/23 can be expected with actual fees being higher 
depending on the work required.  

4. 2020/21 ACCOUNTS AUDIT 

  
 For 2020/21 draft accounts were required to be published by 30 June 2021 and 4.1

accounts audited by 30 September 2021.  The Council published its draft accounts 
by 30 June 2021, but the audit is ongoing. In accordance with ‘The Accounts and 
Audit Regulation 2015’ the Council has published an explanation of why the audited 
accounts are not yet available. 
 

 Only 9% of local authorities had their 2020/21 accounts audited by the deadline and 4.2
as at 30 November 2022 there were still 160 audits outstanding. The Council’s 
auditor (Deloitte) has worked at various points on the audit and is expected to 
conclude in the early part of next year having scheduled resources to commence in 
January to conclude the outstanding work. An internal review period will be required 
by the auditor of that work before they can sign it off. 
 

 Although the audit is ongoing and final figures are subject to this, it should be 4.3
highlighted the following material adjustments to the published accounts have been 
identified to date: 
 

  COVID Grants (£28m) – As previously reported, some of the COVID grants had 
their income and expenditure recognised in the Income and Expenditure 
Statement. As the Council was acting as an ‘agent’ for central government 
these transactions should not have been disclosed in the statement. As the 
income matches the expenditure there is no bottom-line impact and the figures 
will be removed. 
 

  Depreciation (£1.9m) – Since 2016/17 the Council adopted a practice of not 
depreciating assets that were revalued in the year. This was not compliant with 
accounting requirements meaning revaluations were understated and needed 
to be corrected back to 2016/17. However, the actual assets values are correct 
and unaffected. The implications of this were that the Revaluation Reserve was 
understated and the Capital Adjustment Account overstated. These are both 
unusable reserves and as such does not impact on the bottom line, value of the 
assets or money available and is a technical accounting adjustment.  

 

  Pension Valuation (£324k) – The draft pension valuation was used to complete 
the accounts. When the final valuation was available it showed that a change to 
the corresponding pension liability and pension reserve was required. This 
does not have an impact on the bottom line. 

 

  Debtor / Receipt in Advance (£344k) – A government grant due to be paid in 
the following year was incorrectly coded as a receipt in advance instead of a 
debtor. This classification does not impact the bottom line and will be 
reclassified as a debtor. 

 

  Income Compensation Grant (£45k) – After publication of the accounts, 
confirmation of the final income compensation grant was received, which 
differed by £45k less than was estimated. This was already adjusted for in 
21/22 when the grant was received so is a reclassification between years and 
does not change the general fund balance reported at 31 March 2022. 

 

  Net Pension Payments (£10k) – Pension payments relating to added years 
were not posted from a balance sheet code to expenditure. This was identified 
by the finance team who have created a new code to ensure these payments 

Page 10



are separately identifiable to avoid a reoccurrence of this. This impacts on the 
bottom line by £10k. 

 
 As outlined at the beginning of the report the scale fees are no longer representative 4.4

of what the actual audit fees will be. However, any variation of the scale fee needs to 
be approved by PSAA. The process for this is as follows: 

 
1. Firstly, the auditors will seek to reach an agreement on fees with the Council 

through negotiations. The Council does not have to agree with them. 
 

2. Following the conclusion of the audit, the auditors submit their fee variation to 
the PSAA and indicate if the Council agrees with them or not. 

 

3. PSAA will discuss the fee proposal with the Council and consider their points. 
 

4. PSAA will review and question the fee variations and ask for further evidence 
and explanations as necessary, including looking at audit files. 

 
 

5. PSAA will then determine the final fee. 
 

 In advance of determining fees the PSAA will be conducting research into all firms to 4.5
understand what reasonable additional work is, considering the new requirements, to 
help inform its decisions. The initial fee proposed by the audit is below, however this 
will change depending on the actual work undertaken. 
 

  

19/20 
Actual 

(£) 

20/21 
Proposed 

(£)   

Scale fee  37,942 37,942 Pre-set by PSAA 

Variations 0 32,938 Will be reviewed post-audit by PSAA 

Value for money 0 10,000 Will be reviewed post-audit by PSAA 

Covid-19 Work 7,700 7,700 COVID specific - not ongoing 

Asset valuation 9,120 0   

Total Cost 54,762 88,580   

 

5. 2021/22 ACCOUNTS AUDIT 

  
 For 2021/22 draft accounts were required to be published by 31 July 2022 and 5.1

accounts audited by 30 November 2022.  The Council once again published its draft 
accounts by the deadline, but the audit is yet to commence due to the delay in the 
2020/21 audit. In accordance with ‘The Accounts and Audit Regulation 2015’ the 
Council has published an explanation of why the audited accounts are not yet 
available. 
 

 Only 56 out of 467 (12%) of local authorities had their 2021/22 accounts audited by 5.2
the deadline of 30 November 2022. MDC’s audit will commence following the 
conclusion of the 2020/21 audit and is expected to commence in July with the 
2022/23 audit following on immediately from that. 
 

 The following table produced by the Local Government Information Unit (LGiU) 5.3
shows the number of authorities who published their unaudited accounts by the 
deadline. Maldon was one of only 63% of Districts who published by the deadline. 

Page 11



 

 

6. AUDIT PERIOD 2023/24 – 2027/28 

  
 On 3 October 2022 PSAA announced the outcome of its procurement of audit 6.1

services for the 470 local government, police and fire bodies (99% of eligible local 
bodies) that have opted into its national scheme for the next appointing period 
spanning the audits from 2023/24 to 2027/28. 
 

 The procurement took place against the challenging backdrop of a troubled audit 6.2
profession, a turbulent market and a local audit system that is facing unprecedented 
difficulties including large volumes of delayed audit opinions. Only ten audit suppliers 
are currently registered to undertake local audits in England, three of which opted not 
to take part in this procurement. 

 
 Contracts were offered to six suppliers following a competitive process that was 6.3

protracted reflecting the limited capacity available in the market. The scale of the 
contracts varies widely depending upon the capacity which each supplier is able to 
provide. 
 

 Three existing suppliers were retained, Grant Thornton, Mazars and Ernst & Young. 6.4
Former supplier KPMG and two new suppliers, Bishop Fleming and Azets Audit 
Services were also awarded contracts. The Council’s current auditor (Deloitte) is 
leaving the market. 
 

 From 2023/24 the respective shares of the audits of opted-in bodies will be as 6.5
follows: 

 

Supplier Share of PSAA’s work 

Grant Thornton 36.0% 

Mazars 22.5% 

Ernst & Young 20.0% 

KPMG 14.0% 

Bishop Fleming 3.75% 

Azets Audit Services 3.25% 

 
 The bid prices that were received in this procurement reflected a significant increase 6.6

compared to the previous procurement in 2017. The audit industry has faced major 
challenges in the intervening period. In addition, local audit faces several distinctive 
difficulties which have resulted in a less competitive market. 
 

Page 12



 In Autumn 2023 PSAA will consult on the proposed scale of audit fees payable by 6.7
bodies in respect of the audit of 2023/24 accounts. At this stage PSAA’s advice is to 
anticipate a major re-set of total fees for 2023/24 involving an increase of the order of 
150% on the total fees for 2022/23. The actual total fees will depend on the amount 
of work required. PSAA have raised this as a matter of concern with the Department 
for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) for consideration. 
 

 Based on Maldon’s 20/21 fee it is likely the 22/23 could be close to £100,000. A 6.8
150% increase to this would mean a 23/24 audit fee of £250,000. In addition to the 
increased costs, it is also a concern that the additional audit work will inevitably 
create additional work for the Council to service this, adding to resourcing pressures.  
The PSAA will consult formally on scale fees for 2023/24 in Autumn 2023 and will 
publish confirmed scale fees for 2023/24 for opted-in bodies on their website by 30 
November 2023. 
 

 To address these issues, it is hoped that future changes to the local audit system will 6.9
include reductions in the volume of work which auditors are required to undertake 
before arriving at their opinion on the financial statements, enabled by a combination 
of revisions to the accounting and auditing requirements. 
 

 The Council’s next auditor will be KPMG, who PSAA have provided the following 6.10
synopsis for: 
 
One of the ‘Big Four’ audit firms, KPMG operates in over 100 countries with over 
230,000 employees providing audit, assurance, tax, consulting and advisory services 
to the public and private sectors. KPMG employees around 16,000 people in the UK. 
Within the public sector they have 14 active Key Audit Partners supported by a team 
of 100 staff and a range of specialists.  KPMG undertakes a range of other public 
sector audit work including Local Audits in the NHS, central and local government 
audit work on behalf of NAO and Audit Scotland and a range of external audits in the 
education and social housing sectors.  Prior to 2018, KPMG were appointed auditors 
to a range of local government bodies through previous audit procurement exercises. 

7. CONCLUSION 

 
 The Council has published its unaudited accounts for both 2020/21 and 2021/22 by 7.1

the deadline, however the audits remain ongoing. Audit fees are expected to 
increase significantly in coming years which will be an additional financial pressure 
and there are concerns around the impact on Council resources caused by new audit 
requirements.  

8. IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES 

 
 Financial management supports all strategic themes. 8.1

9. IMPLICATIONS 

 
(i) Impact on Customers – None. 

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None. 

(iii) Impact on Risk – None. 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – The implications are outlined in the 
report. 

Page 13



(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None. 

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None. 
 
(vii) Impact on Strengthening Communities – None. 

 
 
Enquiries to:  
 
Chris Leslie, Director of Resources – chris.leslie@maldon.gov.uk 
 

Page 14

mailto:chris.leslie@maldon.gov.uk


 

 
Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 
DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE 

to 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
19 JANUARY 2023 
 
REVIEW OF CORPORATE PERFORMANCE – QUARTER 2 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
 The Corporate Performance framework requires this Committee to undertake a 1.1

quarterly review of the Thematic Strategies, and Commercial Strategy performance, 
as assurance that performance is being managed effectively to achieve the corporate 
outcomes as set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2021 - 2023.  
 

 APPENDIX 1 to this report provides an overview of Thematic strategies and 1.2
Commercial Strategy performance as of the end of Quarter 2 (July 2022 – October 
2022). 

 
 Online versions are available to view on the Members’ SharePoint site. 1.3

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

(i) That Members review the information as set out in this report and APPENDIX 
1 with priority focus given to the Strategic Outcome level performance. 
 

(ii) That Members confirm they are assured through this review that corporate 
performance is being managed effectively.  

 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 

 

 Any concerns affecting the corporate outcomes, or the commercial strategy are set 3.1
out in APPENDIX 1.  To summarise: 

 
 

 Overall Place Strategy Performance 
o Work continues to progress and support delivery of place strategy; 

however, the economy is starting to have an influence on a few of the 
strategic objectives. 

o The following outcomes are rated as `at risk` 
 ‘Deliver the housing the District needs’ 
 ‘Work with partners to maintain and improve the District 

resilience to the effects of climate change’ 
 

 Overall Prosperity Strategy Performance 
o Work continues to progress and support delivery of prosperity 

strategy, however the impacts of Covid has had an enormous impact 
on tourism, local economy, and all local businesses. This has 
significantly delayed progress on strategic objectives. 

o The following outcomes are rated as `at risk` 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

 `Enabling future economic investments and new jobs 
 ‘Support Existing Local business’  
 `Enhancing & Promoting the Districts visitor economy 

 

 Overall Community Strategy Performance 
o Work continues to progress positively. Overall, the performance 

delivery is on-track, there are some conditional elements identified 
which are not currently a concern. 
 

 Overall Commercial Strategy Performance 
o Work continues to progress positively.  

 
 The following Key Performance Indicators (KPI) have been annotated as 'At Risk’ for 3.2

Q2: 
 

Place Thematic 
Strategy KPIs 

        

At Risk 

 

 Five Year Housing Land Supply Statement updated and 
Published 

 Implement Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) action plan 

 

 

Prosperity 
Thematic 
Strategy KPIs 

 

 

 

 

At Risk 

 

 Business satisfaction with MDC services 

 Business Benefit through tourism activity 

 Economic value of events 

 Tourism Value to the District (£ and %) 

 Number of business groups engaged with Sense of Place 

network 

 Estimated % reach of the Maldon District business network. 

 

Community 
Thematic 
Strategy KPIs 

 

At Risk 

 

 None 

Commercial 
Strategy 

 

At Risk 

 

 None 

 

4. CONCLUSION 

 
 Most of the reported performance measures at Q2 are on track despite resource re-4.1

allocation due conflicting priorities and delayed affects COVID 19.  
 

 Where Strategies are seeing negative impacts of performance, priority and focused 4.2

recovery work will continue to progress to bring measures back on track. 
 

Page 16



 

5. IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES 

 
 It is important that performance is monitored and managed effectively, to ensure that 5.1

Maldon District Council progresses towards and/ or achieves its stated outcomes. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 

 

(i) Impact on Customers – Performance management covers the monitoring of 
corporate outcomes. The Corporate Plan includes delivery for our customers.  

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None. 

(iii) Impact on Risk – If performance is not managed effectively by the Council, it 
puts the Council’s corporate outcomes’ delivery at risk and increases 
unnecessary exposure to potential, operational, reputational, or regulatory 
consequences. 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – All performance management is 
undertaken within existing planned budgets.  

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – All performance management is 
undertaken within existing planned budgets.  

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None. 
 

(vii) Impact on Strengthening Communities – None. 
 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
Enquiries to: Paul Dodson, Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance. 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate 
Performance
Report
Q2
Year: 2022/2023

Report Generated: December 2022

APPENDIX 1

P
age 19



APPENDIX 1

P
age 20

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 21

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 22

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 23

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 24

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 25

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 26

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 27

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 28

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 29

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 30

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 31

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 32

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 33

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 34

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 35

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 36

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 37

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 38

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 39

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 40

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 41

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 42

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 43

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 44

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


APPENDIX 1

P
age 45

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/ac947f64-bb8b-49b6-885a-5f40e293a8ab/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

.  
Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 
DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE 

to 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE  
19 JANUARY 2023 

 
REVIEW OF CORPORATE RISK – QUARTER 2 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
 The Risk Management Policy requires this Committee to undertake a quarterly 1.1

review of the Corporate Risk Register as assurance that the corporate risks are being 
managed effectively.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

(i) That Members review the Corporate Risk Register in APPENDIX 1 and 

provide comment and feedback for consideration. 

 

(ii) That Members review progress of the Corporate Risk Mitigating actions in 

APPENDIX 2 and provide comment and feedback for consideration. 

 

(iii) That Members are assured through this review that corporate risk is being 

managed effectively. 

 

(iv) That Members challenge risk where the Committee feels that the Council’s 

corporate goals may not be achieved. 

 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 

 
3.1 APPENDIX 1 shows a summary and detailed table of the Corporate Risk Register, 

the latest ratings and officer commentary. The control strength of each risk is also 
now included as well if there are any active mitigating actions. APPENDIX 2 shows 
progress of all active mitigating actions. The criteria for this is set out in the updated 
Risk Management Framework adopted in Septembers PGA committee.  

 
3.2. All risks were subject to a detailed review considering the new Risk Management 

Framework policy adopted by PGA in September and recommendations made by the 
Risk Management Audit in November.   

 
Amendments made were: 

 Quarterly report amendment to include each risk control rating - 
APPENDIX 1 

 Performance Overview of Corporate risks – APPENDIX 1 
 R31 retitled, no other details changed 

 Was: Resources and operating staffing structure is not 
sufficient for resilience 

 Now: Inadequate staffing structure and resource for resilience 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



  

 R32 retitled, no other details changed 

 Was: Failure to manage the operational impact of the cost-of-
living crisis 

 Now: Uncertainty of the cost-of-living crisis impacts 
 Quarterly reporting of mitigating actions to PGA – APPENDIX 2 

 

3.3 Increased/New Risks since last quarter 

 Increased Risk (Likelihood)  – R1 - Failure to safeguard children and 

vulnerable adults 

 Decreased Risk (Likelihood) -  R3 - Failure to target services/influence 

partners effectively to support identified housing needs of increasing 

aging population 

 Decreased Risk (Likelihood) - R29 - Failure to deliver services as a result 

of COVID- 19 

 Note concerning increasing risks from service level: Service level risks 

are identified and monitored in Service Plans by the relevant Service Plan 

Owners. They are then escalated, if deemed appropriate and necessary, to 

committee level for consideration. 

4. CONCLUSION 

 
 Overall, no major Corporate Risk Register concerns have been raised. The 4.1

aftereffects of COVID19, and the economical and cost of living crisis is a presence on 
the landscape, however the Council continues to mitigate any risks caused by this. 
Work continues to ensure all risks are mitigated, and where possible, working 
towards their closure. 

5. IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES 

 
 It is important that risk is monitored and managed effectively, to ensure that Maldon 5.1

District Council progresses towards and/ achieves its stated outcomes. 

6. IMPLICATIONS 

 

(i) Impact on Customers – Those risks in the Corporate Risk Register are 
defined as having a wider impact on our customers and delivery. The 
monitoring and mitigation of these will reduce the impact on customers.  

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None. 

(iii) Impact on Risk – If risk is not managed effectively by the Council, it puts the 
Councils strategic delivery at risk and increases unnecessary exposure to 
potential, operational, reputational, or regulatory consequences. 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – All risk management is undertaken within 
existing planned budget. Exceptions being for a potential enactment of a 
recommendation outside of pre-defined resource. 

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – All risk management is undertaken within 
existing planned budget. Exceptions being for a potential enactment of a 
recommendation outside of pre-defined resource. 

Page 48



  

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None. 
 

(vii) Impact on Strengthening Communities – None. 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
Enquiries to: Paul Dodson, Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance. 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

P
age 51



Title Risk Description Impact Likeli
hood

Overall 
Risk 

Rating

Rating 
direction

Q2 2022/2023 Commentary Control 
Strength

Additional 
Mitigating 

Action
R7 Failure to maintain 

a 5 year supply of 
Housing Land

5 5 25 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 - Housing restraint policies in LDP 2017 
remain out of date according to the Council 
and NPPF and the ‘tilted balance’ in favour of 
granting planning permission applies in the 
District until it improves above 5 years again. 
The 5YHLS stands at 3.66 years as of 
04.07.2022. This does mean good news for 
Neighbourhood Plans which are back to being 
in-date as there is at least a 3 year supply. 
However, this improvement is still not enough 
to improve the risk score, which remains under 
5 years. Further supply is therefore required 
through planning applications being granted for 
more housing by the Council or by the 
Planning Inspectorate on appeal to replenish 
the land supply that has had homes completed 
on. The Council has already taken the remedial 
action of reviewing the strategic policies in its 
LDP (although no changes have yet been 
adopted and will not be until at least 2025/26) 
which is a positive step to improve land supply 
by allocating more land and considering 
allocating a broader range of sites to help 
reinforce the land supply better over time; but 
as reported previously this will not conclude 
before 2024/2025. In the meantime, the only 
thing the Council can do is consider 
applications for residential development more 
favourably (by applying the tilted balance in the 

Good - 
controls in 
place are 

considered 
adequate and 

reduce the 
risk 

None 
Required

APPENDIX 1

P
age 52



NPPF) if they are otherwise acceptable, even if 
they are contrary to the spatial strategy and 
policies of the LDP 2017 (given they are out of 
date by virtue of having less than the required 
years' supply of land). The housing market, the 
pace of construction of unimplemented 
planning permissions and the economic cycle 
remain outside the council’s control, but these 
could help sustain this risk over time. Council 
has created a 5 Year Housing Land Supply 
Working Group to review the methodology and 
assure Council it is appropriate - this will meet 
in Q3 of 2022.

R8 Failure to meet the 
affordable housing 
need

5 4 20 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 - There is activity happening to reduce the 
risk, the Council is continuing in the process of 
progressing in seeking to move forward with 
the delivery of non-allocated sites. Alongside 
this, significant commuted sums have been 
agreed either through a S.106 agreed through 
a recent appeal decision and subsequent 
decision at the District Area Committee. These 
sums should unlock the potential for significant 
additional affordable housing units.

Fair - some 
controls in 
place and 

some 
reduction in 

risk but still not 
adequate 

Yes

R15 Failure to plan and 
deliver balanced 
budgets over the 
medium term

5 4 20 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 - The cost of living crisis continues to put 
pressure on the Council’s finances. An update 
MTFS will be presented to S&R committee in 
November to reflect this. A savings exercise 
has been undertaken and a strategic approach 
to identify further savings options is now 
underway.

Good - 
controls in 
place are 

considered 
adequate and 

reduce the 
risk 

None 
Required

R5 Failure to deliver 
the required 

4 4 16 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 - The Council is not responsible for much of 
the infrastructure needed to support the 

Good - 
controls in 

None 
Required

APPENDIX 1

P
age 53



infrastructure to 
support 
development 
arising from the 
LDP 2017

delivery of the LDP; instead it must seek to 
influence and hold other organisations to 
account for delivery, whilst facilitating through 
securing developer contributions. Despite 
annual targets, the LDP housing trajectory 
remains behind where it was forecast to be in 
2017; this is not all in the Council's control, but 
it does have a knock-on effect on other 
performance measures such as the 5 Year 
Housing Land Supply, as well as when S106 
monies to be paid are legally due; when 
triggers have not been met due to the pace of 
construction therefore being slower, which can 
also slow infrastructure delivery and seem as 
though development in the District is not 
providing infrastructure when it is needed. 
S106 continues to be accrued from 
development sites allocated in the LDP 2017 
as required by planning policy and legal 
agreements. The Council is robustly monitoring 
its S106 agreements on a weekly basis and 
seeking payments when specific triggers are 
hit; authorising the transfer of funds to third 
party providers or internal departments when 
projects are ready to draw down on their 
planning contributions, as well as considering 
whether further recovery action is necessary 
when contributions are not paid on time. This is 
now reported annually in the Infrastructure 
Funding Statement which is reported to PGA 
Committee. The Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
remains under review (as part of the LDP 
Review) and officers are proactively engaging 

place are 
considered 

adequate and 
reduce the 

risk 

APPENDIX 1

P
age 54



with infrastructure providers more frequently 
(e.g. ECC Highways, Education and NHS) to 
ensure projects (such as the Maldon Health 
Hub/ Southminster Medical Centre/ Burnham 
Surgery/ South Maldon Relief Road, Limebrook 
Way Primary School, etc.) that what they are 
owed from developments so work can start 
through their organisation’s capital investment 
business case procedures to programme 
works to improve local services or facilities as 
quickly as possible. Officers continue to remain 
alert to possible Government funding and 
remain in discussions with Homes England and 
other partners about other funding 
opportunities and options that could help 
deliver this and other infrastructure; this 
included reviewing whether Levelling Up 
Funding could be applied for these purposes in 
Summer 2022.

APPENDIX 1

P
age 55



Title Risk Description Impact Likeli
hood

Overall 
Risk 

Rating

Rating 
direction

Q2 2022/2023 Commentary Control 
Strength

Additional 
Mitigating 

Action
R14 Unable to recruit 

and retain staff with 
specific skills sets in 
specialist areas to 
meet the demands 
of the service(i.e.) 
Planners

4 4 16 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 - A report will be submitted to the 
September meeting of Council seeking 
approval  to review the operating model for the 
Service Delivery Directorate. Members will also 
be asked to authorise a detailed review of 
planning services and a findings  report will be 
submitted to Members at the end of 2022. The 
review of the structure will look to address 
vacancies through clarification of role 
descriptions, accountability and reporting lines. 
The Council HR team have also been working 
and leading on a recruitment initiative with the 
Local Government Association. It is planned 
that during November HR and Planning 
professionals from all over Essex will meet to 
discuss ways in which local authorities can 
work together to improve recruitment into hard 
to fill professional roles

Good - 
controls in 
place are 

considered 
adequate and 

reduce the 
risk 

None 
Required

R31 Inadequate staffing 
structure and 
resource for 
resilience

4 4 16 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 - A report will be submitted to the 
September meeting of Council seeking 
approval  to review the operating model for the 
Service Delivery Directorate. Members will also 
be asked to authorise a detailed review of 
planning services and a findings  report will be 
submitted to Members at the end of 2022. The 
proposals seek to ensure teams are configured 
effectively to ensure resilience. Changes will 
address capacity issues as part of the changes 
proposed.

Fair - some 
controls in 
place and 

some 
reduction in 

risk but still not 
adequate 

Under 
Review

APPENDIX 1

P
age 56



Title Risk Description Impact Likeli
hood

Overall 
Risk 

Rating

Rating 
direction

Q2 2022/2023 Commentary Control 
Strength

Additional 
Mitigating 

Action
R33 Lack of Temporary 

Accommodation & 
Social Housing to 
cope with demand

4 4 16 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 -  Housing has secured the following units 
for use as Temporary Accommodation x8 
Single Units in Colchester x1 2 bed flat in 
Maldon District - potential for 3 other similar 
units Total available TA Units - 21

Fair - some 
controls in 
place and 

some 
reduction in 

risk but still not 
adequate 

Under 
Review

R9 Failure to have a 
coordinated 
approach to 
supporting inward 
investment and 
maximising 
business rate 
growth

5 3 15 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 - The creation of the Maldon District 
Investment Prospectus has been further 
delayed to Q3 2022/23 for a number of 
reasons, primarily the impacts of Covid and the 
prioritisation of recovery/SPF/LUF focused 
work. The project is now close to completion 
and its launch will partly address this risk. 
Recent work with partners, particularly the 
NEEB and ECC have been very positive and 
we are well engaged with their multiple 
workstreams and in advance of their own 
inward investment work. Other factors include 
delays to the LDP review and limited progress 
in recent years with the current Allocated 
Employment sites. While it is not in our power 
to make development happen, an updated 
LDP, with policies and decisions that are more 
supportive of investment, would further 
address this risk (to the extent of our ability to 
do so). Risk remains but improvement is 
expected

Fair - some 
controls in 
place and 

some 
reduction in 

risk but still not 
adequate 

Yes

APPENDIX 1

P
age 57



Title Risk Description Impact Likeli
hood

Overall 
Risk 

Rating

Rating 
direction

Q2 2022/2023 Commentary Control 
Strength

Additional 
Mitigating 

Action
R4 Failure to influence 

Community Safety 
partners to address 
the key areas of 
public concern 
(including rural 
crime) and the 
negative perception 
of crime

4 3 12 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

 Q2 - The Community Safety Partnership 
(CSP) continues to review performance data, 
monitors crime trends, public perceptions of 
crime and fear of crime. The CSP action plan is 
monitored and updated annually targeting 
interventions as required. Activity undertaken 
by the CSP is revied by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee acting as the Crime and 
Disorder committee twice yearly. The next 
opportunity for review will be in October 2022

Good - 
controls in 
place are 

considered 
adequate and 

reduce the 
risk 

None 
Required

R10 Failure to develop 
jobs to support the 
growing population

4 3 12 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 - ONS (Nomis) statistics indicate the 
District has historically high employment during 
Q1 & Q2 and lower unemployment, below UK 
and Essex averages. Statistically this is 
positive, and we would be minded to reduce 
the risk, but national issues are causing 
considerable uncertainty and pressures still 
exist from high numbers of vacancies and 
rising costs, including energy. This makes the 
local picture potentially volatile and progress is 
still needed on mitigating controls.

Fair - some 
controls in 
place and 

some 
reduction in 

risk but still not 
adequate 

Under 
Review

R11 Failure to protect 
personal or 
commercially 
sensitive data

4 3 12 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 - Egress Training currently being 
undertaken by all staff. Data Breach Form has 
also been designed to assist in ensuring 
breaches are reported uniformly across the 
Council.

Good - 
controls in 
place are 

considered 
adequate and 

reduce the 
risk 

None 
Required

APPENDIX 1

P
age 58



Title Risk Description Impact Likeli
hood

Overall 
Risk 

Rating

Rating 
direction

Q2 2022/2023 Commentary Control 
Strength

Additional 
Mitigating 

Action
R29 Failure to deliver 

services as a result 
of COVID- 19

4 3 12 Risk Rating 
Decreased

Q2 - Council services have returned to pre-
Covid operations including those provided by 
contractors on behalf of the Council. Sickness 
rates arising from Covid are low and each case 
is managed on an individual basis. Hybrid 
working continues to allow staff  the option  to 
work (depending on activity undertaken) 
despite isolating during any period of infection

Good - 
controls in 
place are 

considered 
adequate and 

reduce the 
risk 

None 
Required

APPENDIX 1

P
age 59



Title Risk Description Impact Likeli
hood

Overall 
Risk 

Rating

Rating 
direction

Q2 2022/2023 Commentary Control 
Strength

Additional 
Mitigating 

Action
R1 Failure to safeguard 

children and 
vulnerable adults

5 2 10 Risk Rating 
Increased

Q2 -Safeguarding risks continue to be picked 
up via the Councils online Freshserve reporting 
tool and its Safeguarding leads. The MDC 
Safeguarding forum recently sat with 
reasonable discussion and case reviews taking 
place. However, there is slight concern over 
Officer capacity to attend. This will be 
monitored at the next meeting. There have 
been a high number of recent safeguarding 
referrals with greater numbers of high complex 
needs coming through our Housing and ASB 
pathways. The increases in high complex need 
cases has highlighted gaps in staff resource, 
knowledge base and/or departmental process. 
As such, in addition to a review of our policies 
and procedures, there is also a need to refresh 
the departmental Designated Safeguarding 
Officer (DSO) list following various staff 
changes. Lastly, BDO are currently carrying 
out a audit review. Any new recommendations 
will feed into a revised MDC Safeguarding 
Policy will be required to encompass all of the 
above. As the current policy is still live and 
relevant and our Safeguarding work/referrals 
continues to be made, the likelihood of risk has 
increased minimally and should reduce once 
the above have been actioned.

Good - 
controls in 
place are 

considered 
adequate and 

reduce the 
risk 

None 
Required

APPENDIX 1

P
age 60



Title Risk Description Impact Likeli
hood

Overall 
Risk 

Rating

Rating 
direction

Q2 2022/2023 Commentary Control 
Strength

Additional 
Mitigating 

Action
R32 Uncertainty of  the 

cost of living crisis 
impacts

3 3 9 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2 - The Council continues to support the 
community through the provision of advice and 
signposting towards support available to help 
individuals impacted by the cost of living Crisis. 
The Council itself monitors and reports on 
impacts including income and expenditure. 
This information is shared with Members via 
working groups, The Strategy and Resources 
Committee and the Performance Governance 
and Audit Committee. Members will review the 
MTFS later this year, consider fees and 
charges for 2023/24 taking into account all 
financial pressures and implications for the 
Council and its customers. Human Resources  
colleagues provide information, signposting 
and support for our staff, hybrid working allows 
staff some flexibility in managing travel costs 
etc

Good - 
controls in 
place are 

considered 
adequate and 

reduce the 
risk 

None 
Required

APPENDIX 1

P
age 61



Title Risk Description Impact Likeli
hood

Overall 
Risk 

Rating

Rating 
direction

Q2 2022/2023 Commentary Control 
Strength

Additional 
Mitigating 

Action
R2 Failure to target 

services and 
influence partners 
with the aim of 
having an effective 
outcome on  the 
identified (health 
and wellbeing) 
needs of the 
vulnerable 
population

4 2 8 Risk Rating 
Unchanged

Q2- Working relationships with services and 
partners remain strong. We continue to engage 
with Mid Essex Alliance, One Maldon District, 
Maldon District Community Forum, Livewell 
Board and Maldon District Food Support 
Network to support our most vulnerable 
residents. To support our most vulnerable 
residents through the Cost of Living Crisis, One 
Maldon District partners are creating a Winter 
Services Community Pack and Winter Services 
Leaflet to provide residents with vital 
information on how to access services and 
activities this winter.

Good - 
controls in 
place are 

considered 
adequate and 

reduce the 
risk 

Yes

R3 Failure to target 
services/influence 
partners effectively 
to support identified 
housing needs of 
increasing aging 
population

4 1 4 Risk Rating 
Decreased

Q2 - Housing Development continue 
discussions with partners regarding Extra Care 
Accommodation within District (Sites 
confidential at this stage). The New Local 
Housing Needs Assessment(LHNA) 2021 is 
being used as a reference point in discussions 
with Housing, Planning and Developers to 
ensure our elderly population needs are met, 
identifying requirements now and into the 
future for our elderly population. Note that the 
LHNA supersedes the previous Strategic 
Housing Market Assessment (SHMA).

Good - 
controls in 
place are 

considered 
adequate and 

reduce the 
risk 

None 
Required

APPENDIX 1

P
age 62



Corporate Risk Mitigating Actions
Associated Risk Mitigating action Status Q2 Updates Completion 

date
R2 - Failure to target 
services and influence 
partners with the aim of 
having an effective 
outcome on the 
identified health and 
wellbeing needs of the 
vulnerable population

Develop Livewell Strategy and formal 
action plan.

New Action Q2 - This will be started shortly. Once 
finalised it will be taken through committee.

December 
2023

R8 - Failure to meet the 
affordable housing need

Establish a programme of community 
led housing

On Track Q2 - Eastern Community Homes Group have 
set out a work plan to assist in Community 
Led Housing projects. The work plan and an 
agreement to using Community Led Housing 
funds have been sent to S&R Committee 
06/10/22 for approval by members. Upon 
approval, it is expected that ECHG will begin 
its program of works and this action will be 
completed.

December 
2022

APPENDIX 2

P
age 63



R8 - Failure to meet the 
affordable housing need

Create & embed a regular review 
process of affordable housing 
demographic V houses delivered and 
District demand to ensure void loss not 
encountered/minimised, and affordable 
accommodation is meeting needs.

Complete Q2 - The Local Housing Needs Assessment 
2021 (LHNA) provides an update to the 
previous Strategic Housing Market A 
assessment 2014. This document details the 
Affordable Housing Needs of the district. 
Regular discussions and monitoring occur 
between Strategic Housing, Planning and 
Applicants/Developers in line with the LHNA 
and Policy to ensure the right number, size 
and tenure is provided on developments to 
meet the housing needs of the district.

December 
2022

R9 - Failure to have a 
coordinated approach 
to supporting inward 
investment and 
maximising business 
rate growth

Interim Inward investment activity New Action Q2 - In advance of the new Maldon District 
Investment Prospects, currently nearing 
completion, The Council is working with 
ECC's inward investment team and 
landowners to field inward investment 
enquires as well as working with ECC on their 
Marketing Essex Project

March 2023

APPENDIX 2

P
age 64



 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 
DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE  

to 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
19 JANUARY 2023 
 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTIONS UPDATE  

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
 To update the Committee on the actions identified in the 2022/2023 Annual 1.1

Governance Statement.  

2. RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the Committee reviews the Annual Governance Statements table and updates 
below and challenges where necessary. 

 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 

 
 The Annual Governance Statement in its new format was approved by the 3.1

Performance, Governance and Audit committee on 10 June 2021.  In line with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) best practice, it was 
reflective of governance matters for 2021/22, and forward looking about where we 
could make improvements for 2022/23.  
 

 The report has an action plan for the year looking forwards and the Committee 3.2
agreed that progress on the actions would be reported to and reviewed by the 
Committee. 
  

 The Action Plan is held on our SharePoint system and updated by responsible 3.3
officers.  
 

 The Actions Highlighted in Grey have been previously reported as completed 3.4
 

 The current table of actions and officer updates are detailed below for Member 3.5
consideration. 
  

Title Owner Status Target 
Completion 

Commentary 

Draw out and 
link all of our 
policies and 
their 
objectives 
through a 
review of the 
Local 
Development 
Plan (LDP) 

Matt 
Winslow 

Ongoing 31/12/2023 Q2 - Work remains ongoing in the 
LDP Review to update the planning 
policy framework in the context of 
national policy and local policy, 
although project has slowed in part 
due to a need to reprioritise officer 
resources to support Development 
Management, Enforcement and the 
Levelling Up Funding application. 
28.5k Issues and Options 

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



Title Owner Status Target 
Completion 

Commentary 

(e.g. 
Corporate 
Plan, Climate 
Change). 

consultation responses being 
reviewed by team. Key evidence 
previously reported as underway, 
remains underway - however some 
slippage due to changing national 
policy and guidance and consultant 
capacity. Conversations ongoing 
with Essex County Council (ECC) 
concerning Transport Modelling but 
must wait for Maldon District Council 
(MDC) to reduce potential Growth 
Options down to 3 from 7. Internal 
studies for Wind Energy potential 
and Green Space Review underway. 
In delivering this action, it is 
important to recognise that the older 
the Council's other policies or 
objectives, the harder it will be to 
reflect them in the LDP Review 
update, particularly if circumstances 
have changed locally or national 
planning policy has moved on. LDP 
Review via the Planning Policy 
Project Board is already tied into 
other policy, strategy and action plan 
development including the Corporate 
Plan, Climate Action Strategy and 
Commercial Strategy. 

Build on 
member/ 
officer code 
of conduct 
with training 
and support 
and increase 
positive 
working 
relationships. 

Simon 
Quelch 

Ongoing 31/03/2023 Q2 – Comments are the same as 
Q1. The Code of conduct training for 
district and parish Councillors took 
place at the end of June in 
preparation for the new code of 
conduct that was adopted by council 
in March. Gnu online registration 
forms are now available for 
members to complete by 1st August. 

Update the 
Risk 
Management 
Strategy and 
re-evaluate 
the 
Corporate 
Risk Register 
in line with 
this. 

Cheryl 
Hughes 
 

Ongoing 31/12/2022 Q2 - PGA adopted Risk policy 
29.09.22 updates to risk register 
reporting to be proposed for Q2, and 
staff and member training to be 
rolled out, then this action will close. 

Improve 
engagement 
with resident 
and business 
survey, and 
look at wider 

Eloise 
Howard 

Ongoing 31/12/2023 Q2 - Both Resident and Business 
surveys are due to launch 3rd 
October. All Members, Parish, 
Partnerships, Local connections & 
assets engaged to support 
promoting participation, as well as 

Page 66



Title Owner Status Target 
Completion 

Commentary 

options for 
future 
engagement 
(budget 
survey). 

additional methods to ensure every 
household is reached and those that 
are not `digital first` (i.e.) Print on the 
waste calendar distribution 
envelope, Local Magazines, Paper 
Copies available on request and 
customer services support. 

Build 
engagement 
and 
information 
sharing with 
Parish 
Councils as 
part of the 
Local 
Development 
Plan review 
work. 

Matt 
Winslow 
 

Ongoing 31/12/2023 Q2 - Work during Q2 on the LDP 
Review slowed to accommodate a 
diversion of some resources to 
Development Management, 
Enforcement and the Levelling Up 
Fund application. Discussions have 
however been taking place with the 
Strategy Theme Lead - Community 
who has been leading on a similar 
project to engage the Parishes 
differently for other Council activities, 
which are being informed by 
workshops with Parishes. 

Deliver 
process 
improvement 
training for 
staff and 
build capacity 
for continual 
improvement 
work across 
the 
organisation. 

Cheryl 
Hughes 
 

Completed 31/12/2022 Q2 - Over 30 staff attended the 20th 
September training session Lean Six 
Sigma yellow belt - and champions 
were highlighted by ELT to cover 
across the organisation. 

Build on 
delegated 
decision 
reporting that 
has been put 
in place 
March 2022. 

Cheryl 
Hughes 
 

Completed N/A Q1 - 
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/decisions 
page now established and will be 
updated quarterly with performance 
reviews. Process for ELT/CLT to 
update in place and has been 
communicated. 

Seek further 
support and 
resolutions to 
promote 
smooth 
running of 
committee 
meetings 

Cheryl 
Hughes 

Completed N/A Q1 -  Committee meeting disruptions 
have reduced since March 2022, but 
process for Chairman to be followed 
were included in the May 2022 
Chairman training. 

Build on 
member 
induction 
process and 
put in place 
ahead of 
2023 
onboarding 

Cheryl 
Hughes 

Completed N/A Q1 – Member induction process has 
been designed and agreed between 
elections and committees staff and is 
fully documented ahead of May 
onboarding. Completed as of 
29/7/22. 

Page 67

https://www.maldon.gov.uk/decisions


Title Owner Status Target 
Completion 

Commentary 

Embed the 
Climate 
action 
strategy and 
pledges into 
operational 
working. 

Georgina 
Button 

Completed 05/07/2022 Q1 - Carbon Literacy Training 
completed All staff smart objectives 
set Climate Action Officer recruited - 
starts 30th August Climate Action 
Connectors (senior managers 
collating the activities under the 5 
pledges) set up. Climate Action 
added to regular agenda meetings. 

4. CONCLUSION 

 
 The information provided gives progress updates against the key actions defined in 4.1

the 2022/23 Annual Governance Statement  

5. IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES 

 
 Good governance will enable delivery of strategic priorities going forwards. 5.1

6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
(i) Impact on Customers – Not applicable (N/A). 

(ii) Impact on Equalities – N/A 

(iii) Impact on Risk – Good governance will help minimise our corporate risk for 
the future. 
 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – The monitoring and delivery of this item 
is provided within existing resources. 
 

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – The monitoring and delivery of this item is 
provided within existing resources. 
 

(vi) Impact on the Environment – N/A 
 
(vii) Impact on Strengthening Communities – N/A 

 
 
Background Papers: 2022/23 Annual Governance Statement 
 
Enquiries to: Cheryl Hughes, Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager. 

Page 68


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	6 Audit Progress Update
	7 Review of Corporate Performance - Quarter 2
	Appendix 1
	Corporate Performance�Report€�Q2
	Overview
	PLACE PL1
	PLACE PL1
	PLACE PL2
	PLACE PL2
	PLACE PL3
	PLACE PL3
	PLACE PL4
	PLACE PL5
	PROSPERITY P6
	PROSPERITY  P7
	PROSPERITY  P8
	PROSPERITY  P8
	PROSPERITY  P8
	COMMUNITY C9
	COMMUNITY C9
	COMMUNITY C10
	COMMUNITY C11
	COMMUNITY C12
	COMMUNITY C13
	COMMUNITY C13
	Commercial Outcomes
	Commercial Active
	Commercial LUF
	Commercial Other
	Commercial£


	8 Review of Corporate Risk - Quarter 2
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	9 Annual Governance Actions Update



